
 

 

NOTICE OF A MEETING 

 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 

HILTON COLUMBUS DOWNTOWN 

401 N HIGH STREET 

COLUMBUS, OH 43215 

EDNA BOIES HOPKINS BALLROOM 

 

Thursday, April 7, 2016 

1:30 p.m. 

 

AGENDA 

 

1. Welcome – Matt Greeson, Chair 

 

2. Consent Agenda 

 Approval of March 3, 2016 minutes 

 

3. Executive Director’s Report – William Murdock 

 Quarterly Membership Report – Eileen Leuby 

 

4. Committee Updates 

 Building Committee – Derrick Clay, Chair 

 Nominating Committee – Rory McGuiness, Chair 

 Reserve & Investment Advisory Committee – Joe Stefanov, Chair 

 Regional Policy Roundtable – Laura Koprowski 

 Transportation Policy Committee – Thea Walsh 

 

5. Proposed Resolution 03-16: “TO AFFIRM THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING 

COMMISSION’S SUPPORT OF FAIR HOUSING AND PROMOTING FAIR AND 

EQUAL HOUSING IN THE CENTRAL OHIO AREA” – Christina O’Keeffe 

 

6. Diversity & Inclusion 2015 Work Plan Recap – Laura Koprowski & Bernice 

Cage 

 

7. Draft Commission Agenda 

 

8. Other Business 

 

PLEASE NOTIFY SHARI SAUNDERS AT 614-233-4169 OR 

ssaunders@morpc.org IF YOU REQUIRE SPECIAL ASSISTANCE. 

 

The next Executive Committee Meeting is 

Thursday, May 5, 2016 at 1:30 p.m. 

111 Liberty Street, Suite 100 

Columbus, Ohio 43215



Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

 

Executive Committee 

Meeting Minutes 

 

 

Thursday, March 3, 2016 

1:30 p.m. 

 

Members Present 

Karen Angelou 

Marilyn Brown 

Derrick Clay 

Tracie Davies 

Michael Ebert 

Matt Greeson 

Rory McGuiness 

Gary Merrell 

Eric Phillips 

 
MORPC Staff Present 

Rachel Beeman 

Kerstin Carr 

Evelyn Ebert 

Joe Garrity 

Shawn Hufstedler 

Ciel Klein 

Laura Koprowski 

William Murdock 

Christina O’Keeffe 

Nancy Reger 

Shari Saunders 

Susan Tsen 

Thea Walsh 

Brandi Whetstone

 

Guests 

Steve Campbell, City of Columbus, Regional Policy Roundtable Chair 

Jim Schimmer, Franklin County, Sustainability Advisory Committee Vice-Chair 

Steve Stolte, Union County Board of Commissioners, Sustainability Advisory Committee Chair 

 

 

Welcome – Matt Greeson 

Chair Matt Greeson called the meeting to order at 1:35 p.m.  

 

Consent Agenda 

Eric Phillips made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda, second by Marilyn Brown; motion passed. 

 

Ohio Energy Mandates – Steve Stolte, Sustainability Advisory Committee Chair and Steve Campbell, Regional 

Policy Roundtable Chair 

Steve Stolte, Steve Campbell and Jim Schimmer summarized the March 3, 2016 Memo to the Executive 

Committee on the joint recommendations of the Sustainability Advisory Committee and the Regional Policy 

Roundtable regarding the Ohio Energy Mandates Study Committee. Other background information included a 

March 3 letter of support from Mayor Kim Maggard to Chair Greeson and Meeting Minutes from the February 

26, 2016 joint meeting of the Sustainability Advisory Committee and the Regional Policy Roundtable.  

Commission members were invited to participate in the February 26, 2016 meeting. 

 

The joint recommendations are consistent with the 2015-2016 Regional Sustainability Agenda and the 2016 

Public Policy Agenda adopted by the Commission. The recommendations are: 

 Actively oppose the extension of SB 310 freeze indefinitely. 

 Actively support appropriate credits to maximize advanced energy projects and recommend taking a 

closer look at details. 

 Actively support a combination of mandates and incentives, with the idea that incentives will help 

meet the goals of the mandates. 

 

Eric Phillips made a motion to accept the recommendations and instruct staff to prepare a resolution for the 

Commission, second by Marilyn Brown; motion passed. 

 

 

http://morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/03-03-2016%20Final%20Ohio%20Energy%20Mandates%20Memo%20eCommittee.pdf
http://morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/03-03-2016%20Mayor%20Maggard%20Letter.pdf
http://morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/02-26-2016%20Joint%20SAC%20RPR%20Meeting%20Minutes.pdf
http://morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/02-26-2016%20Joint%20SAC%20RPR%20Meeting%20Minutes.pdf


Executive Committee Minutes 

March 3, 2016 

Page 2 

 
Executive Director’s Report – William Murdock 

William Murdock extended congratulations to Karen Angelou for being named the Gahanna Convention & 

Visitors Bureau Ambassador of the Year. 

 

Mr. Murdock has joined the Partners Achieving Community Transformation (PACT) board for the near east side 

neighborhood in Columbus and is also on the National Association of Regional Councils (NARC) Policy 

Committee. 

 

Work on the Diversity & Inclusion Plan is in process and Mr. Murdock asked Committee Members if they were 

willing to wait another month for the Diversity & Inclusion Plan update.  MORPC Team Members are looking at 

creating a 2-year plan. Commission Member Christina Villacinda-Farr is working with MORPC’s Senior 

Leadership Team on our diversity efforts. 

 

The operations realignment into one department is going well under Shawn Hufstedler’s leadership. Some 

responsibilities are changing under the new department and processes are being streamlined. We have 

contracted with Franklin County for help with Human Resources one and a half days each week. 

 

The DC Fly-In was March 2, 2016. MORPC participates in the Fly-In which is organized by the Columbus 

Partnership and the Columbus Region Coalition. Meetings were held with the entire Central Ohio legislative 

delegation as well as with Transportation Secretary Foxx. Laura Koprowski distributed copies of the Columbus 

Region Coalition Federal Policy Agenda 2016 which was shared at the DC meetings.  

 

We have been able to meet with the entire Central Ohio Delegation regarding the Data Lab and received 

favorable responses. 

 

A number of MORPC Team Members and Commission Members attended the National Association of Regional 

Councils (NARC) National Conference of Regions February 7-9, 2016. They had the opportunity to meet with 

every member of the Central Ohio Legislative Delegation as well as the head of freight for US DOT. 

 

We had a great turnout at the Newly Elected Officials Breakfast and at the New Strategies for Cities events 

held at MORPC. 

 

The National Safe Routes to School Conference is April 5-7, 2016. The Executive Committee meeting is being 

moved to the Columbus Hilton Downtown, the site of the conference, on April 7, 2016. The conference 

includes strong keynotes, breakout sessions, field trips and tours. It opens Tuesday, April 5, with a celebration 

at Strongwater’s. Registration is currently at 400; the registration goal is between 500 and 600.  

 

Create Great Communities Through Active Public Spaces will be held Thursday, April 7, 9:00-11:00 a.m. at 

MORPC. Gil Penalosa, one of the National Safe Routes to School keynotes is the presenter. 

 

The insight2050 Executive Committee met the last week of February and continued work on Phase II and 

began talking about Phase III. 

 

Upcoming events: 

 Creating Age-Friendly Communities – for MORPC Associate Members, Tuesday, March 8, 8:00-11:30 

a.m., MORPC 

 Annual Village Dinner – Tuesday, April 19, 5:30-7:30 p.m., MORPC 

 State of the Region – Friday, May 6, Columbus Hilton Downtown – there will be a special membership 

reception at 10 a.m.  

 

Congratulations to Bernice Cage for receiving the WTS 2016 Rosa Parks Diversity Leadership Award. 

 

http://morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/2016%20Federal%20Policy%20Agenda.pdf
http://morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/2016%20Federal%20Policy%20Agenda.pdf


Executive Committee Minutes 

March 3, 2016 

Page 3 

 
IT Assessment – William Murdock & Shawn Hufstedler 

Shawn Hufstedler distributed a few copies of the MORPC Information Technology Assessment prepared by 

Sophisticated Systems. The purpose of the report was to help MORPC be a best practices organization. There 

are no staff changes. Shawn Hufstedler presented report results and highlights. 

Overall, MORPC’s technology environment is functional and meeting the needs of the organization. Some of 

the strengths are: 

 the desire to ensure IT systems are serving the user needs well 

 tenure of staff 

 the importance of the role IT plays in MORPC’s services 

 

Areas to improve include: 

 need for formalization of policies and documentation of the IT environment  

 significant sprawl of departmental technology, creating a complex environment to be supported 

 lack of bandwidth of IT staff 

 lack of clear strategy forward 

 

The report provided a possible roadmap for moving forward. As with many external consultant 

recommendations, we may not be able to do everything recommended and in the time recommended, but the 

road map provides direction and help in prioritization. We will focus on the first three items: 

  

1. The IT team is already researching ticketing systems – this should help with efficiency, clarity of 

problems, and the ability to prioritize and track problems occurring.  

2. The second item will be documentation of our IT environment and procedures – helps to better 

understand what we have and how it all works together as well as helping with back-up and cross 

training.  

3. Third will be the migration to Office 365 – we expect this to be a more reliable format for the office 

suite with less staff time and equipment spent on maintenance.  

 

As these are achieved, we will focus on the longer term strategy while continuing to make tactical strides.  

 

Benefits & Compensation Committee Update – Eric Phillips 

Eric Phillips will announce the appointment of Marilyn Brown as Chair of the Benefits & Compensation 

Committee at the March 10, 2016 Commission meeting. 

 

Bylaws Committee Update – Rory McGuiness, Chair 

The Bylaws Committee is in the process of setting up a meeting. 

 

Nominating Committee Update – Rory McGuiness, Chair 

Rory McGuiness presented the nominations from the Nominating Committee. The 2016 Nominating 

Committee members are Rory McGuiness (Chair), Chris Bauserman, Marilyn Brown, Ted Staton and Nancy 

White. The Nominating Committee convened on February 5, 2016 and makes the following recommendations: 

 

Nominees for Officers for one-year Officer Terms (expires 2017):   

Matt Greeson, Chair 

Rory McGuiness, Vice Chair 

Karen Angelou, Secretary 

 

Nominees for renewed one year Executive Committee Terms (expires 2017): 

Joe Stefanov (2008) – Chair of Investment & Reserve Committee 

Derrick Clay (2007) – Chair of Building Committee 

Marilyn Brown (2007) – Chair of Compensation & Benefits Committee 

Eric Phillips (2007) – Past Chair 

http://morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/MORPC%20IT%20Assessment.pdf
http://morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/03-03-2016%20IT%20Assessment%20PPT.pdf


Executive Committee Minutes 

March 3, 2016 

Page 4 

 
Matt Greeson (2009) – Officer 

 

Nominees for renewed two-year Executive Committee Terms (expires 2018): 

Karen Angelou (2014)  

Michael Ebert (2014) 

Rob Platte (2014) 

Rory McGuiness (2014) 

  

The nominations will be voted on at the April Commission Meeting. Executive Committee members serving 

their second year of a 2-year term include Tracie Davies, Kim Maggard and Gary Merrell.  

 

Regional Policy Roundtable Update – Laura Koprowski 

The capital bill budget has not been introduced yet, but it is expected soon. The Columbus Partnership 

submitted their list. 

 

Tom Homan testified before the Legislative Transportation Task Force on increasing permissive license plate 

fees. 

 

Return & Investment Advisory Committee Update – Shawn Hufstedler 

The next committee meeting is March 10, 2016 following the Commission meeting. The committee is working 

on a draft operating reserve policy that will be presented to the Commission the first half of 2016. 

 

Sustainability Advisory Committee Update – Kerstin Carr & Christina O’Keeffe 

A subcommittee has been formed to evaluate the Greenways & Water Quality Working Group. This 

subcommittee is co-chaired by Susan Ashbrook and Glenn Marzluf. Over the next six months, the committee 

will provide recommendations on the working group's structure and purpose. 

 

The regional PACE district, Columbus Regional Energy Special Improvement District, was established in 

January through the City of Columbus. They are utilizing the PNC Plaza building downtown. A formal 

announcement and reception is being held Thursday, March 10, 2016 at 1:00 p.m. Christina O’Keeffe 

represents MORPC on the board which is actively talking to other communities to join. The idea is to have 

shared services across multiple jurisdictions.  

 

Transportation Policy Committee Update – Thea Walsh 

The Fixing America’s Surface Transportation (FAST) Act announced two freight funding opportunities last 

week.  

 

The Transportation Investment Generating Economic Recovery (TIGER) competitive grant, with funding up to 

$500 million, is looking for multi-modal projects that elevate people in their lives. Applications are due April 

29, 2016.  

 

FAST Lane funding, or Section 1105, is specifically for freight and is set at $800 million. Some awards will 

exceed $25 million. Applications are due April 14, 2016. MORPC is helping guide communities and partners 

to determine which funding opportunity works best for their projects. 

 

The FAST Act also establishes a National Highway Freight Program that provides $6.3 billion in formula funds 

over five years for states to invest in freight projects. Ohio’s award is approximately $40 million per year. 

Ohio’s Freight Plan is not done.  

 

The Transportation Review Advisory Council (TRAC) major new proposals are coming out in May.   

 

 

 



Executive Committee Minutes 

March 3, 2016 

Page 5 

 
State of the Region Awards – Laura Koprowski 

Laura Koprowski distributed ballots for the State of the Region Awards. Members were asked to complete the 

ballots and return them to Ms. Koprowski by Tuesday, Mach 8, 2016. Ballots will be sent to Executive 

Committee members not present at the meeting. 

 

Quarterly Financial Statements – Shawn Hufstedler 

Shawn Hufstedler reviewed the December 2015 Financial Report.  Highlights include: 

 Everything that could be paid by year-end was and is reflective of the improvements made in the 

accounts payable process this year. 

 Due to Accounting Standard GASB 68, MORPC’s pension liability will be included in the next financial 

reports. This will be a significant liability, as will be the case for all local governments in Ohio. It does 

not indicate any financial distress of MORPC, but rather reports the long-term unfunded pension 

liability of OPERS. 

 The operating loss was expected and is due to a combination of costs-to-date that were uncovered for 

home repair programs for revenues recorded in prior years, State of the Region, and most significantly 

the cost of sales for the final NSP property for revenues collected in prior years. 

 Members dues were close to budget at 8.2 percent of total revenue. 

 We received more than needed for our fringe and will “give back” the $61,670 via the 2017 fringe 

rate 

 The indirect cost variance was only $203 over budget and will be collected via the 2017 indirect cost 

rate. 

 The cash on hand equals 3.4 weeks worth of cash flow and is lower than desired. 

 MORPC spent well within appropriations this year. 

 The annual audit will take place in April and May and is the first under the new accounting system. 

 

Draft Commission Agenda 

The Executive Committee reviewed the draft March 10, 2016 Commission Meeting Agenda. 

 

The meeting adjourned at 3:10 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

Matt Greeson, Chair 

Executive Committee 



 

Memorandum 
 
TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

Executive Committee 

Officers and Board Members 

 

FROM: 

 

Rory McGuiness, Secretary 

 

DATE: 

 

February 26, 2016 

SUBJECT: Nomination of Executive Committee Members 

 

BACKGROUND 

In accordance with the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission Articles of 

Agreement, the Commission will be notified at least five (5) days prior to the Annual 

Meeting as to the nominees for MORPC’s Officers and Executive Committee Team 

members. The Nominating Committee excerpt from the Articles is as follows: 

"At least twenty (20) days prior to the annual meeting, the chair shall appoint the 

Nominating Committee. Said Nominating Committee having been duly appointed 

and confirmed shall, at least ten (10) days prior to the annual meeting of the 

COMMISSION, report the names of the candidates so nominated to the secretary. 

The secretary shall advise each member of the COMMISSION, in writing, at least 

five (5) days prior to the annual meeting as to the nominees so selected. At the 

annual meeting, the chair of the Nominating Committee shall report the names 

so nominated. After this report is presented, nominations from the floor shall be 

invited. Such nominations must be seconded. The secretary then shall prepare 

ballots properly identifying the nominees, said ballots shall be distributed and 

tallied during the annual meeting by a temporary committee appointed for that 

purpose." 

 
The Five Nominating Committee Members are: 

Rory McGuiness-Committee Chair, Deputy Director, City of Columbus 

Chris Bauserman, County Engineer, Delaware County 

Marilyn Brown, County Commissioner, Franklin County 

Ted Staton, City Manager, City of Upper Arlington 

Nancy White, Township Administrator, Mifflin Township 

 

NOMINATING COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS: 

The Nominating Committee convened on February 5, 2016 and made the following 

recommendations: 

 

The nominees for Officers for one-year Officer Terms (expires 2017):   

Matt Greeson, Chair, City Manager, City of Worthington 

Rory McGuiness, Vice Chair, Deputy Director, City of Columbus 

Karen Angelou, Secretary, Council Member, City of Gahanna 

 



 

 

Nomination of Executive Committee Members 

February 26, 2016 

Page 2 

 

The nominees for Executive Committee are: 

 

For renewed one year Executive Committee Terms (expires 2017): 

Joe Stefanov (2008), Chair of Investment & Reserve Committee 

 City Manager, City of New Albany 

Derrick Clay (2007), Chair of Building Committee 

 President/CE0-New Visions, Franklin County representative 

Marilyn Brown (2007), Chair of Compensation & Benefits Committee (pending) 

 County Commissioner, Franklin County, 

Eric Phillips (2007), Past Chair, Executive Director/Chamber CEO, Union  

 County/Marysville Economic Development Partnership 

Matt Greeson (2009), Officer, City Manager, City of Worthington 

 

For renewed two-year Executive Committee Terms (expires 2018): 

Karen Angelou (2014), Council Member, City of Gahanna  

Michael Ebert (2014), Mayor, City of Canal Winchester 

Rob Platte (2014), Township Administrator, Etna Township 

Rory McGuiness (2014), Deputy Director, City of Columbus 

 

Note: Several Executive Committee positions do not have expiring terms this year 

and therefore require no action by the Nominating Committee:   

 

In the second year of a two-year Executive Committee Term (expires 2017)  

Tracie Davies (2014), Director, Public Utilities, City of Columbus 

Gary Merrell (2015), County Commissioner, Delaware County 

Kim Maggard (2015), Mayor, City of Whitehall 

 
 



 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

Executive Committee 

Officers and Board Members 

 

FROM: 

 

Christina O’Keeffe, Director 

Energy & Air Quality 

 

DATE: 

 

April 1, 2016 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution 03-16: " TO AFFIRM THE MID-OHIO 

REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION’S SUPPORT OF FAIR 

HOUSING AND PROMOTING FAIR AND EQUAL HOUSING IN THE 

CENTRAL OHIO AREA " 

 
 

 

This month marks the 48th anniversary of the Fair Housing Act and the celebration of 

National Fair Housing Month.  MORPC joins federal, state, and local agencies and our 

Central Ohio community in remembering why the Fair Housing Act was passed in 

1968 and commits to educating Central Ohio residents on their housing rights. 

 

Under the Federal Fair Housing Law, Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (Fair 

Housing Act), it is illegal to deny housing to any person because of race, color, 

religion, sex, familial status, physical or mental disabilities, or national origin.  Under 

the Ohio Fair Housing Act, it is illegal to deny housing to any person because of race, 

color, religion, sex, disability, familial status, national origin, ancestry, or military 

status. 

 

MORPC has operated major housing rehabilitation and minor home repair programs 

for low-and moderate-income families for more than 30 years. In addition, MORPC 

administers the Joint Columbus and Franklin County Housing Advisory Board, which 

reviews mortgage revenue bond requests for affordable housing developments to be 

approved by the Franklin County Board of Commissioners. 

 

MORPC receives federal, state, and local public funds to administer these housing 

programs, which serve Central Ohio residents with a diverse range of backgrounds.  

The United States Congress has adopted a national policy to provide, within 

constitutional limitations, for fair housing throughout the United States.  MORPC is 

committed to support fair housing laws and provide public information on fair 

housing and equal housing lending to applicants of all agency housing programs.   

 



 

 

Memo 

Proposed Resolution 03-16 

Page 2 

 

 

This resolution recognizes the preservation of the fair housing rights of the residents 

of Central Ohio and links to MORPC’s mission of economic prosperity, the priority of 

being a leader in regional, state, and national policies, as well as the strategy to 

expand and sustain the availability of affordable housing. 

 

Attachment: Resolution 03-16 

 



RESOLUTION 03-16 

 

“TO AFFIRM THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION’S SUPPORT OF FAIR HOUSING AND 

PROMOTING FAIR AND EQUAL HOUSING IN THE CENTRAL OHIO AREA” 

 

WHEREAS, the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC) supports the principle of equal 

rights and privileges for all citizens and desires to give meaning to the laws of this state and the 

United States; and 

 

WHEREAS, under the Federal Fair Housing Law, Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 as amended 

(known as the “Fair Housing Act”), it is illegal to deny housing to any person because of race, color, 

religion, sex, familial status, physical or mental disabilities, or national origin; and 

 

WHEREAS, under the State of Ohio Fair Housing Law, Section 4112.02(H) of the Ohio Revised Code, 

it is illegal to deny housing to any person because of race, color, religion, sex, familial status, physical 

or mental disabilities, national origin, ancestry, or military status; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission supports fair housing laws and provides pub-

lic information on fair and equal housing to applicants of MORPC’s housing programs; now therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That it is the policy of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission to promote and 

provide fair housing materials to all applicants of MORPC’s housing programs. 

 

Section 2. This resolution assists in the preservation of the fair housing rights of the residents of 

Central Ohio and links to MORPC’s mission of economic prosperity, the priority of be-

ing a leader in regional, state, and national policies, as well as the strategy to expand 

and sustain the availability of affordable housing. 

 

Section 3. The Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission shall publicize this resolution and the 

agency’s commitment to fair housing to its employees and the general public. 

 

Section 4. The Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission shall post a Fair Housing Law poster, 

which includes the Equal Housing Opportunity logo, in a public location of the MORPC 

establishment and/or website. 

 

Section 5. The Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission shall advise MORPC employees to for-

ward any housing discrimination complaints to the Ohio Civil Rights Commission, 

Rhodes State Office Tower, 30 E. Broad Street, 4th Floor, Columbus, Ohio 43215-

3414. 

 

Section 6. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute and 

deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal counsel, he shall 

deem necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution. 

 

Section 7.  That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and actions 

of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were 

taken in open meetings of this Commission. 
  



Resolution 03-16 

Page 2 

 
 

                                                                                

Matt Greeson, Chair 

      MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

 

Effective date: April 14, 2016 

Submitted by: Christina O’Keeffe, Director, Energy & Air Quality 

Prepared by:  Christina O’Keeffe, Director, Energy & Air Quality 

Authority:  Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21 

For action date: April 14, 2016 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


